Table of Contents

- A. Blue Shield Bylaws
- B. Blue Shield Home Care Referral Form
- C. NCP Guidelines for Palliative Care
- D. Palliative Care Patient Eligibility Screening Tool
- E. Palliative Care Services Recertification Form

This page intentionally left blank.

CALIFORNIA PHYSICIANS' SERVICE

Blue Shield of California

bylaws

revised May 2, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Page</u>

Preamble	1
CHAPTER 1. PURPOSES	1
CHAPTER 2. MEMBERSHIP	2
Section 1. Classification of Members	2
CHAPTER 3. PHYSICIAN MEMBERS	2
Section 1. Physician Members	2
Section 2. Termination of Physician Membership	3
Section 3. Fair Procedure	3
CHAPTER 4. BENEFICIARY MEMBERS	3
Section 1. Beneficiary Members	3
CHAPTER 5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS	3
Section 1. Corporate Powers Vested in Board of Directors	3
Section 2. Terms of Office	4
Section 3. Nomination and Election of Directors	4
Section 4. Vacancies	4
Section 5. Removal From Office	4
Section 6. Powers of the Board	4
Section 7. Duties of the Board	4
Section 8. Fees and Compensation	5
Section 9. Meetings of the Board	5
Section 10. Physician Directors	5
CHAPTER 6. OFFICERS AND TECHNICAL ADVISORS	5
Section 1. Officers	5
Section 2. Election of Officers	6
Section 3. Vacancies	6

BYLAWS 050223

CHAPTER 7. DUTIES OF OFFICERS	6
Section 1. Chairperson of the Board	6
Section 2. Chief Executive Officer	7
CHAPTER 8. EXECUTIVE AND OTHER COMMITTEES ESTABLISHED	
Section 1. Executive Committee	
Section 2. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee	8
Section 3. Other Committees	
Section 4. Committee Chair	
CHAPTER 9. ARRANGEMENTS FOR SUBSCRIBERS AND ENROLLEES, AND PUBLIC POLICY PARTICIPATION	
Section 1. Definitions	
Section 2. Entering Agreements	9
Section 3. Public Policy Participation	9
CHAPTER 10. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES OF PHYSICIAN MEMBERS AND OTHERS	9
Section 1. Payment to Physician Members	9
Section 2. Compensation	
Section 3. Surcharges Prohibited	
Section 4. Continuation of Services	
Section 5. Compliance	
CHAPTER 11. FUNDS	
Section 1. Investment of Funds	10
CHAPTER 12. MISCELLANEOUS	
Section 1. Business to be Conducted Without Profit	
Section 2. Use of Income: Salaries May Be Paid to Officers and Employees	11
Section 3. Distribution of Assets on Dissolution	11
Section 4. Principal Offices	
Section 5. Other Offices	
Section 6. Seal	
Section 7. Indemnification	11

CHAPTER 13.	AMENDMENTS	12
Section	1. Power of the Board	12

BYLAWS

CALIFORNIA PHYSICIANS' SERVICE

Preamble

California Physicians' Service was established as a non-profit corporation on February 2, 1939, to provide not only leadership in the maintenance of high standards of medical service, but also in the means of distribution of that service so that all who need care may receive it. Recognizing that the very advances made by modern science have greatly increased the cost of good health care services and will continue to increase that cost as new methods and equipment for diagnosis and treatment are discovered and perfected; and, therefore, that the cost of always unpredictable injury or illness is a financial catastrophe too great to be borne by the few citizens of California thus always inflicted at any given time, although the total cost over any period is within the means of the total group; this corporation was established as a method to distribute this cost of medical service so as to relieve the intolerable financial burden heretofore falling on the unfortunate few in any given period of time. This voluntary medical service plan was established to enable the people of the State of California to obtain prompt and adequate health care services whenever needed on a periodic budgeting basis without injury to the standards of medical service, without disruption of the proper physicianpatient relation and without profit to any agency, assuring that all payments made by patients except administrative costs will be utilized for health care services and not otherwise, in an efficient, coordinated and organized service which can, upon the same fundamental basis, be the means which governmental agencies -- federal, state, and local -- may use to provide, at the lowest possible cost to the taxpayer, good health care services.

CHAPTER 1. PURPOSES

The purposes of this corporation are:

- 1. The establishment and maintenance of a fund obtained by means of periodic payments on behalf of its beneficiary members, to be used to defray the costs of medical services, hospital care and other health services and facilities or medical service and hospital care alone or in conjunction with other health services and facilities.
- 2. To furnish and supply to those persons eligible for and admitted to beneficiary membership herein, hospital and nursing service at the lowest cost consistent with due and adequate care on a periodic payment plan, in hospitals now or hereafter organized or established in the State of California, whose organization and management evidence that they are qualified to render and are actually rendering economic and efficient hospital care to the sick and injured.

- 3. To enter into, make, perform and carry out contracts for the performance of medical services or for the furnishing of hospital care or both medical services and hospital care or for any other lawful object or purpose with any public or municipal corporation, body politic, the State of California, or any political subdivision of said state, any instrumentality, commission, board, bureau, or other administrative agency of said state, the United States of America, or anydepartment, bureau, commission or other administrative agency thereof, or any corporation incorporated under the laws of the United States or any foreign state.
- 4. To build, acquire, operate, equip, maintain, lease as lessee or lessor, mortgage, deed in trust, sell, and otherwise dispose of hospitals, laboratories, drugs, medicines, medical and surgical apparatus, instruments and supplies and all other physical means and facilities for the relief, care and treatment of sick and injured persons.
- 5. And in aid and furtherance of the foregoing purposes, to exercise all powers afforded or permissible under the laws governing this corporation.

CHAPTER 2. MEMBERSHIP

<u>Section 1. Classification of Members</u>. The corporation has no members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. The corporation may refer to persons associated with it as "members" even though such persons are not members within the meaning of Section 5056.

CHAPTER 3. PHYSICIAN MEMBERS

Section 1. Physician Members. Physician Members shall be those licensed physicians who, pursuant to written agreement with this corporation, have the privilege of rendering medical services to subscribers or enrollees when chosen to do so by subscribers or enrollees, and who have the right of receiving payment for such services from available funds of the corporation. The term "Physician Member" shall include individuals entering into such written agreements, and individuals who are partners, officers, members or employees of each Physician Group entering into such agreement, including persons affiliating with said Physician Group subsequent to the making of such agreement, when consistent with the terms thereof. Each Physician Member shall be bound by the Bylaws, schedules of compensation for services rendered, and rules and regulations of the corporations, together with any amendments to such Bylaws, schedules or rules and regulations. Section 2. Termination of Physician Membership. Physician Membership shall automatically terminate in the event of any suspension or revocation of licensure as a physician in California or for disciplinary cause in any other state, whether or not stayed subject to probation, or a conviction of a felony or other criminal offense relating to practice or fitness as a physician; or in the event of action taken by any federal or state agency administering a program providing health benefits, terminating or restricting the physician's right to participate therein for reasons relating to the physician's professional competence, professional conduct, or for the commission of fraud or criminal conduct. Further, Physician Membership may be terminated, suspended, or restricted in accordance with the provisions of the corporation's written agreement authorizing the Physician Member to provide care to subscribers and enrollees, or for other good cause as the corporation may determine.

<u>Section 3. Fair Procedure</u>. Except when termination of Physician Membership is required pursuant to Section 2 above, the termination, suspension or restriction of Physician Membership for cause relating to the Physician Member's professional competence or professional conduct shall not become final until the corporation has afforded the Physician Member a fair procedure, including notice of the reasons for such action, and a reasonable opportunity to respond thereto. The Corporation nonetheless shall be entitled to take summary action reasonably intended for the protection of subscribers and enrollees.

CHAPTER 4. BENEFICIARY MEMBERS

Section 1. Beneficiary Members. Beneficiary members are the persons enrolled to receive services pursuant to medical service certificate or contract, and are herein otherwise referred to as "enrollees," which may include subscribers. No beneficiary member shall have the right to vote or acquire or hold or possess any property right, or right, title or interest in or to any property or assets of the corporation, nor shall any beneficiary member have any rights or privileges other than as are provided herein.

CHAPTER 5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Corporate Powers Vested in Board of Directors. The corporate powers of this corporation shall be vested in a board ("the Board") of not more than fifteen (15) nor less than ten (10) Trustees (referred to herein as "Directors"), comprised primarily of persons who reside in the State of California. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. One Director shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation while holding office as Chief Executive Officer. One director may be the Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation while holding office as Chief Operating Officer. A majority of the Directors shall be Subscribers who are not physicians or other providers of health care services. At least two Directors shall be physicians. Section 2. Terms of Office. The Directors elected by the Board at the regular meeting of the Board preceding the annual meeting shall hold office for three years commencing on the first day of the month in which the annual meeting is held, and ending on the last day of the month preceding the month in which the annual meeting is held three years later, unless removed as provided in these Bylaws, and until their successors are elected and/or appointed or the Board elects not to fill such office pursuant to Section 3 hereof. Directors other than the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer are ineligible for election to the Board for more than four full terms; provided however, that if the Board determines extenuating circumstances exist such that extending the service of a retiring Director is in the best interest of the corporation, the Board may elect a Director to an additional single term of not more than three years. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter 5, Section 2, a Director who has served four full terms shall not be eligible to serve as a Director in the future.

Section 3. Nomination and Election of Directors. At the regular meeting of the Board preceding the annual meeting, the Board shall by resolution fix the exact number of Directors within the maximum and minimum number of directors authorized by these Bylaws and shall elect a Director to fill each vacancy then existing on the Board. The Board may elect Directors from the slate of nominees presented by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, or nominees presented by other Directors.

At any time other than the regular meeting of the Board preceding the annual meeting, the Board may elect up to two (2) additional Directors who shall hold office commencing upon election and ending on the last day of the month preceding the month in which the next annual meeting is held, unless removed as provided in these Bylaws, and until their successors are elected and/or appointed. Such term shall not be considered a full term for purposes of Section 2 hereof. The size of the Board shall be increased automatically to accommodate any Directors so elected.

<u>Section 4. Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the Board may be filled by a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining Director, at any time other than the regular meeting of the Board preceding the annual meeting and each Director so elected shall hold office for the remainder of such term.

Section 5. Removal From Office. Any Director may be removed from office as such by the affirmative vote of three-fourths of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board on written notice, setting forth the reasons and grounds therefore, mailed to such Director at his or her last known address at least ten days prior to the date of such meetings. A Director who is absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Board, without cause, shall automatically forfeit the office of Director. "Cause" includes illness, absence from the state and other grounds acceptable to the Chairperson of the Board.

Section 6. Powers of the Board. The Board shall have full power to control and manage the property and conduct the affairs and business of this corporation and to make rules not inconsistent with the laws of the State of California and these Bylaws for the guidance of the officers and management of the affairs of the corporation.

Section 7. Duties of the Board. It shall be the duty of the Board, in addition to the

other duties imposed on them by the law and these Bylaws, to cause to be kept a complete record for all their minutes and acts; to supervise all committees, officers, representatives, agents and employees; to arrange, handle, conduct and maintain all property and assets of the corporation; to invest and re-invest all money, funds and securities of the corporation and to create and conserve a reserve fund for the purpose of protecting the interests of this corporation. The Board shall, in accordance with the exclusive purpose of this corporation to promote social welfare, endeavor to extend services to the fullest extent consistent with prudent management.

<u>Section 8. Fees and Compensation</u>. Directors shall not receive any stated salary for their services as Directors but, by resolution of the Board, expenses of attendance at each meeting, plus a fixed fee for the time devoted to any meeting, may be allowed.

Section 9. Meetings of the Board.

(a) Annual Meeting: The annual meeting of the Board shall be held in the month of November of each year, or at such other time and place as the Board, by resolution, may determine.

(b) Regular and Special Meetings: In addition to the organization meeting, the Board shall meet at the call of the Chairperson of the Board, or in his or her absence, any three Directors, but not less than four times each year.

(c) Notice and Place of Meeting: Regular meetings of the Board may be held at any place within the State of California without notice if the time and place of such meetings are fixed by the Board. Special meetings of the Board shall be held upon four days' notice (including voice message), facsimile, electronic mail, or as otherwise in accordance with Section 307 of the California Corporations Code.

(d) Written Consent and Waivers of Notice: When all of the Directors are present at any Directors' meeting, however called or noticed, and sign a written consent thereto on the record of such meeting, or if a majority of the Directors are present, and if those not present sign in writing a waiver of notice of such meeting, whether prior to or after the holding of such meeting, which waiver shall be filed with the Secretary, the transactions of such meeting are as valid as if had at a meeting regularly called and noticed.

<u>Section 10. Physician Directors</u>. No person licensed in the State of California as a physician and surgeon shall be eligible to take office as a Director of this corporation unless such person is a Physician Member of this corporation, and in the event that said membership is terminated for any reason, said person shall automatically forfeit the office of Director.

CHAPTER 6. OFFICERS AND TECHNICAL ADVISORS

<u>Section 1. Officers</u>. The officers of the corporation shall be a Chairperson of the Board, President, two or more Vice Presidents, Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, and

such other officers as may be deemed necessary. When the duties do not conflict, one person may hold more than one of these offices except those of President and Secretary.

Section 2. Election of Officers. The Board shall elect a Chairperson of the Board, President, two or more Vice Presidents, Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, and such other officers as may be deemed necessary. The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected at the regular meeting of the Board preceding the annual meeting, for a term of two years with the right of re-election and until his or her successor is elected and appointed unless sooner removed, provided, however, that the Chairperson of the Board shall be eligible to serve for a maximum of two terms. The foregoing maximum may be extended by resolution of the Board. All officers, with the exception of the Chairperson of the Board, shall hold office for one year with the right of re-election, and until their successors are elected and appointed unless sooner removed. Prior to the election of the Chairperson of the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall seek suggestions for nominees from all Directors for that position. The Committee shall then meet to select one or more nominees for that position. The Board shall elect the Chairperson of the Board from these nominations, and any additional nominees from Board members. The Chairperson of the Board must be a member of the Board, and the other officers may, but need not, be members of the Board. The Board may also appoint such other officers, technical advisors, representatives and agents as it may deem proper. Furthermore, the Chief Executive Officer, or if there is none, the President, may appoint such other officers at or below the level of Vice President, technical advisors, representatives and agents as he or she deems proper. The Board may at any time, and with or without assigning any cause therefore, remove any officer, technical advisor, representative, agent or employee elected or appointed by it or by the Chief Executive Officer or President. The Chief Executive Officer or President may at any time, and with or without assigning any cause therefore, remove any officer, technical advisor, representative, agent or employee appointed by him or her.

<u>Section 3. Vacancies</u>. If the office of any officer becomes vacant, the Board may elect a successor who shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.

CHAPTER 7. DUTIES OF OFFICERS

<u>Section 1. Chairperson of the Board</u>. The Chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board to ensure the full discharge of the Board's responsibilities, and performs the following specific duties:

- 1. Chairs meetings of the Board (references in this section to meetings of the Board include regular and special meetings, and executive sessions);
- 2. Chairs meetings of the Executive Committee;
- 3. Oversees the scheduling of Board meetings, and works with committee chairs to coordinate the schedule of committee meetings;

- 4. Takes primary responsibility for creating the agenda for Board meetings, based on input from Directors, and in collaboration with the CEO;
- 5. Ensures proper flow of information to the Board, reviewing the adequacy and timing of documents prepared by management;
- 6. Ensures adequate lead time for effective study and discussion by the Board of business under consideration;
- 7. Helps the Board fulfill the Board's goals by assigning specific tasks to Board members, as needed;
- 8. Facilitates discussion among the independent Directors on key issues, both in executive sessions of the Board and outside of Board meetings, as needed;
- 9. Identifies guidelines for the conduct of the Directors, and ensures that each Director is making a significant contribution;
- 10. Communicates to each Director the results of that Director's individual Board performance evaluation;
- 11. Acts as liaison between the Board and management, including facilitating communication between the CEO and the Board to provide the CEO with useful perspective and insight into Board considerations;
- 12. Provides a "sounding board" for the CEO and actively assists in the CEO's leadership and personal development;
- 13. Provides advice and makes recommendations to the Chair of the Compensation Committee regarding the annual evaluation of the CEO's performance and establishment of the CEO's compensation, and communicates the Committee's decisions on these matters to the CEO;
- 14. Working with the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, ensures proper committee structure, including assignment of members and committee chairs; and
- 15. Carries out other duties as requested by the Board, depending on need and circumstances

<u>Section 2. Chief Executive Officer</u>. The Chief Executive Officer shall, subject to the control of the Board, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and offices of the corporation. The Chief Executive Officer may, but need not, be the President. The Chief Executive Officer shall be ex-officio a member of all standing committees including the Executive Committee, except the Audit, Executive

Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees, shall have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the Office of Chief Executive Officer of a corporation, and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

CHAPTER 8. EXECUTIVE AND OTHER COMMITTEES ESTABLISHED

Section 1. Executive Committee. The Board shall appoint an Executive Committee which shall consist of the Chairperson of the Board plus such other members of the Board as it shall determine. Subject to all actions and instructions of the Board, the Executive Committee shall be vested with all the powers of the Board when it is not in session.

Section 2. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Board shall appoint a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee composed exclusively of persons who are outside directors. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall be responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters, advising the Board on potential conflicts of interest concerning Directors, developing policies on the size and composition of the Board, developing Board selection criteria, reviewing possible candidates for Board membership, performing Board evaluations, and recommending a slate of nominees for Directors and Officers, and such additional or different responsibilities as the Board may establish by resolution from time to time.

Section 3. Other Committees. The Board may from time to time create other standing and special committees, appoint the members thereof and vest therein such powers and duties as it may deem desirable. If the Board shall create either a Medical Policy Committee or a Finance Committee, the membership thereof shall be not less than three. The Chairperson of the Board may attend and participate in the meetings of any standing or special committee whether or not he or she is a member of the committee (without vote if he or she is not a member of the committee).

Section 4. Committee Chairs. The Board shall appoint the Chairs of all standing and special committees other than the Executive Committee, which shall be chaired by the Chairperson of the Board. Except for the Chair of the Executive Committee, committee Chairs shall serve for a term of one year with the right of re-election, provided, however, that they shall be eligible to serve for a maximum of four terms. The foregoing maximum may be extended by resolution of the Board.

CHAPTER 9. ARRANGEMENTS FOR SUBSCRIBERS AND ENROLLEES, AND PUBLIC POLICY PARTICIPATION

Section 1.

(a) "Subscriber" means the person who is responsible for payment to the Corporation for beneficiary membership or whose employment or other status, except for family dependency, is the basis for eligibility for such membership.

(b) "Enrollee" means a person (who may also be a Subscriber) enrolled to be a recipient of services under any agreement by this Corporation to provide such services.

<u>Section 2.</u> The corporation may enter into such arrangements for the provision of health care services to Subscribers and Enrollees as are deemed appropriate, and the privileges and obligations of subscribers and enrollees shall be consistent with the written agreements pertaining thereto.

Section 3. Public Policy Participation. Subscribers and enrollees may participate in establishing corporation public policy affecting their comfort, dignity, and convenience in the receipt of health care services by submitting written recommendations, suggestions or comments identifying the policy issue, together with relevant information. Such policy issues will be included as agenda items for consideration by the Board at least quarterly. The disposition of each such item shall be reflected in the minutes, and the person submitting such item for consideration shall be informed of the Board's action within ten business days following approval of the minutes. The Corporation shall take appropriate measures to advise subscribers and enrollees as to the manner in which they may participate in the development of public policy. Such procedures are not intended for the resolution of individual inquiries or complaints, and shall not substitute for appeal procedures or other contractual provisions governing such inquiries and complaints.

CHAPTER 10. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES OF PHYSICIAN MEMBERS AND OTHERS

Section 1. Payment to Physician Members. In accordance with schedules or provisions for compensation adopted by the Corporation, Physician Members shall be paid for medical or surgical services rendered to Subscribers or Enrollees. In the event that available funds of the corporation are insufficient to pay in full for such services, the corporation may withhold from such payments by assessment such amounts as are required for the corporation's solvency and compliance with statutory requisites, until such time as funds are again available to return such monies to the Physician Members. To the extent that this corporation has, by medical service certification or contract, agreed to pay for such medical or surgical services, subscriber members shall not be liable on account thereof to Physician Members. To provide against contingencies, increased demands for services and other unforeseeable burdens, the Board shall withhold a portion of available funds and place same in a Stabilization Reserve.

Section 2. Compensation. Compensation for rendering medical, surgical, or other services shall be determined by the corporation. Schedules or provisions for compensation adopted from time to time by the corporation shall be binding upon all Physician Members, and Physician Members shall have no right, claim, or demand against this corporation or Subscribers or Enrollees for any further or additional compensation beyond the sums payable pursuant to the applicable schedule. <u>Section 3. Surcharges Prohibited</u>. No Physician Member and no participating health care provider shall make any surcharge for covered services, and the levying of any surcharge shall be cause for suspension or expulsion pursuant to Chapter 3, Section 2, or other appropriate action by the corporation.

Section 4. Continuation of Services. In the event that any person ceases to be a Physician Member or participating health care provider, such person shall look solely to this corporation for payment for covered services then being rendered by such person to Subscribers and Enrollees under such person's care, until services then being rendered are completed, so long as it is not reasonable and medically appropriate to obtain such services from a Physician Member or participating health care provider.

Section 5. Compliance. Each Physician Member or other participating provider shall license or register all equipment required to be licensed or registered by law, and all operating personnel for such equipment shall be licensed or certified as required by law. Further, as to the employment and utilization of allied health manpower by Physician Members and other participating providers, employment and utilization shall be consistent with the Knox-Keene Act and good medical practice.¹Physician Members and all participating providers of health care contracting with this corporation shall maintain such records and provide such information to the corporation or to the Commissioner of Corporations as may be necessary for compliance by the corporation with the provisions of the Knox-Keene Act and the rules thereunder, such records to be retained and to remain available for at least two years regardless of any termination of membership or participating agreement, whether by rescission or otherwise.²

CHAPTER 11. FUNDS

<u>Section 1. Investment of Funds</u>. All funds of this corporation shall be invested in accordance with investment policies adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors or its duly authorized committee. Such investment policies shall be consistent with all applicable laws and regulations.

CHAPTER 12. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Business to be Conducted Without Profit. This corporation shall conduct and carry on its business without profit to any of its members. No member of this corporation shall, by reason of membership herein, be or become entitled at any time to receive any assets, property, income or earnings from the corporation or to profit therefrom in any manner. The exclusive purpose of this corporation is the promotion of social welfare with respect to the costs of illness or injury.

¹ (Formerly Chapter I, Section 5.)

² (Formerly Chapter XI, Section 8.)

Section 2. Use of Income: Salaries May Be Paid to Officers and Employees. All of the income, revenue and earnings of the corporation, unless otherwise limited, shall be held, used, managed, devoted, expended and applied in the discretion and judgment of the Board to carry out the objects and purposes of the corporation and without profit directly or indirectly to any member of the corporation as such; provided, however, that (a) officers, agents and representatives of the corporation who may be selected and appointed from the members or Directors or otherwise may be paid such reasonable salaries or compensation for work done or services performed for the corporation as the Board shall from time to time determine; and (b) Physician Members may receive compensation as hereinbefore provided for medical or surgical services actually rendered to Subscribers or Enrollees.

Section 3. Distribution of Assets on Dissolution. In the event of the dissolution of this corporation, all of its assets and property, after payment and satisfaction and discharge of all claims and demands against and liabilities of the corporation, including claims of beneficiary members for the amount of dues then prepaid and unearned by the corporation, shall first be applied to the repayment of any assessments or monies withheld from Physician Members as yet unpaid, and if the assets and property remaining are insufficient for return in full, a pro rata distribution shall be made. Any assets or property then remaining shall be distributed to the beneficiary members in proportion to the amount of dues contributed by each thereof.

<u>Section 4. Principal Offices.</u> The principal offices for the transaction of the business of the corporation may at any time be established by the Board at any place or places where the corporation is qualified to do business.

<u>Section 5. Other Offices</u>. Branch or substitute offices may at any time be established by the Board at any place or places where the corporation is qualified to do business.

<u>Section 6. Seal</u>. The corporation shall have a common seal consisting of two concentric circles with the words and figures "CALIFORNIA PHYSICIANS' SERVICE, CALIFORNIA, FEBRUARY 2, 1939" and the caduceus engraved thereon.

Section 7. Indemnification. From and after the adoption of this section (9 September 1959) each Director and officer now or hereafter serving the corporation (and said person's heirs, executors and administrators), and each person serving on a committee of this corporation and each person serving on the California Physicians' Service Review Committee established by any county medical society in California, shall be indemnified and held harmless by this corporation from and against all costs and expenses which may be imposed upon or reasonably incurred by said person in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit or proceeding in which said person may be involved by reason of being or having been a Director or officer or committee member of this corporation or committee member of any such California Physicians' Service Review Committee. As used herein, the term "costs and expenses" includes but is not limited to attorneys' fees, court costs, and amounts of judgments against and amount paid in settlement by any such Director, officer, committee member or member of any such California Physicians' Service Review Committee, other than amounts paid by the corporation itself.

No one shall be indemnified hereunder with respect to any matter in which it is finally adjudged that the Director, officer or committee member, or member of any California Physicians' Service Review Committee, is liable for misconduct in the performance of his or her duties.

This section shall also apply to medical advisors or consultants retained by the corporation on a full- or part-time basis, and members of the review committees of other professional organizations, while performing claims review functions for and at the request of this corporation.

CHAPTER 13. AMENDMENTS

<u>Section 1. Power of the Board</u>. Any Bylaw may be adopted or these Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the vote or written assent of a majority of the Board.

Date: /	R	lecommended	program (C	lick link to access	vendor refer	ral email b	elow):
Paliative Care	Heal _	Partners in Care I	Foundation (P	ICF) Personal	Care Service	s	
Referral informatio	0						
Referral Title:	CM Nurse	UM Nurse	Other:				
First name				Last name			M
Phone number		Contact Name	e (If different fi	rom Referring Person	u)	Email (of r	eferring contact)
Member informatio	n						
Last name	-		First name		M		Gender M
Date of birth (mm/d	dawa	11	Age	Member ID	_	<	CAC#
Street address	9mm			-	City		
					2.1		in Code
County				-1	State	4	íp Code
Home phone			_	Cell phone			
Service facility (if app	olicable)			Bus Phone			-
Member consent (if applicable): Yes No	English fluend	cy: Member: 🔄 H	figh 📃 Mediu	Chinese Vietnam m Low Noflue n Low Noflue	ency	an 🗌 Other:	Power of Attorney? (POA) Yes No
Care Giver / Altern	nate contact in	nformation (If no	Caregiver,	enter "None"; if P	OA is Yes, e	nter Medic	al Decision Maker in
Name					Reid	tionship	
Cell phone number	-			Preferred phone	number		
Primary Care Phys	ician informati	ion			10100		
Name						1	IPI
Street address		-			City	-	
State	Zip Code	line for			-		
BSC requesting (Ch	eck the appro	Bus Pho opriate box that		NY home care ret	Fax nur ferral)	nder	
1) Home Visit (In	ndicate Vendo	or Program Abo		Expected Dis		e:	
All Other (arge (All LOBs) All LOBs)			Room #:			
2) Evidence-Ba	and the second second	gement Progra	m	Blue Shield C	oncurrent Re	eview RN	
□ 3) Onsite Facilit	Visit (In-patie	ent at the faciliti	es listed	Name:			
below)	3				_		
UCLA Ronald				Email:			
- UCLASSING	vionica			a 4) Pallia	tive Care/O	ther (Vend	or Name):
Other	Check all that	apply)		Other Risk Factor	rs (Check al	I that apply	()
Other Diagnosis Criteria (conconcion man			□ LOS > 7 days	for most rec	cent admiss	sion
Diagnosis Criteria (Chronic Illness: C	CHF, DM, COPE	and a second second		Limited careg			
Diagnosis Criteria (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness – Pr	CHF, DM, COPI neumonia, MI,			2+ hospitaliza	ations or ED	visits in pas	t 4 months
Diagnosis Criteria (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness – Pr Mental health, D	CHF, DM, COPI neumonia, MI,			and the second se	all a sec		
Diagnosis Criferia (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness – Pr Mental health, D Cancer	CHF, DM, COPI neumonia, MI, Depression, Sub			🗆 5 to 9 medica		in line in	otherapy
Diagnosis Criferia (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness - Pr Mental health, D Cancer Dementia - Alzh	CHF, DM, COPE neumonia, MI, Depression, Sub eimer's			 5 to 9 medica Radiation / cl 	hemotherap		the second se
Diagnosis Criferia (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness - Pr Mental health, D Cancer Dementia - Alzh Post Surgical Pro	CHF, DM, COPE neumonia, MI, Depression, Suk eimer's cedure	ostance Abuse		 5 to 9 medica Radiation / cl 	hemotherag pairment (D	ependent	Question below)
Diagnosis Criferia (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness - Pr Mental health, D Cancer Dementia - Alzh	CHF, DM, COPE neumonia, MI, Depression, Suk eimer's cedure	ostance Abuse		5 to 9 medica Radiation / cl Cognitive imp Level of Impairm	hemotheras pairment (D nent: □Mild)ependent d,⊡Moder	Question below) ate, 3Severe
Diagnosis Criferia (Chronic Illness: C Acute Illness - Pr Mental health, D Cancer Dementia - Alzh Post Surgical Pro End Stage Rena	CHF, DM, COPE neumonia, MI, Depression, Suk eimer's cedure	ostance Abuse		 5 to 9 medica Radiation / cl Cognitive implication 	hemothera¢ pairment (D nent: ⊐Milo cial needs)ependent d,⊡Moder	Question below) ate, 3Severe

This page intentionally left blank.

National Consensus Project (NCP) Clinical Practice Guidelines for Quality Palliative Care

Domain 1: Structure and Processes of Care

Guideline 1.2 Criteria

- 1. An initial comprehensive assessment is completed as soon after the referral as is reasonably possible.
- 2. Each member of the IDT contributes to a comprehensive assessment as soon as reasonably possible, depending on the urgency of patient needs.
- 3. The initial assessment includes conversations with the patient, family caregivers, clinicians and others according to the patient's preferences.
- 4. The initial assessment is conducted in person by one or more IDT members, depending on the needs and concerns of the patient, is documented, and includes:
 - a. Patient and family understanding of the serious illness, goals of care, treatment preferences, and a review of signed advance directives, if available.
 - b. A determination of decision-making capacity or identification of the person with legal decision-making authority.
 - c. A physical examination including identification of current symptoms and functional status.
 - d. A thorough review of medical records and relevant laboratory and diagnostic test results.
 - e. A review of the medical history, therapies, recommended treatments, and prognosis.
 - f. The identification of comorbid medical, cognitive and psychiatric disorders.
 - g. A medication reconciliation, including over-the-counter medications.
 - h. Social determinants of health, including financial vulnerability, housing, nutrition and safety.
 - i. Social and cultural factors and caregiving support, including caregiver willingness and capacity to meet patient needs.
 - j. Patient and family emotional and spiritual concerns, including previous exposure to trauma.

National Consensus Project (NCP) Clinical Practice Guidelines for Quality Palliative Care (cont'd.)

Domain 1: Structure and Processes of Care (cont'd.)

Guideline 1.2 Criteria (cont'd.)

- k. The ability of the patient, family and care providers to communicate with one another effectively, including considerations of language, literacy, hearing, and cultural norms.
- I. Patient and family needs related to anticipatory grief, loss, and bereavement, including assessment of family risk for prolonged grief disorder.
- 5. The team identifies and documents if the adult patient or a family member served in the military and whether the patient or family member may be eligible for VA benefits.
- 6. For pediatric patients, the team ascertains the developmental status and children or teens' understanding of their disease, as well as parental preferences for their child's care at the time of initial consultation. This is revisited throughout the trajectory of care.
- 7. The IDT performs subsequent assessments at regularly defined intervals and whenever the patient's status significantly changes, new problems are identified, or the patient experiences a transition in health care setting or provider.

To view Domains 3-8, visit the National Coalition for Hospice and Palliative Care's **National Consensus Project** page.



Palliative care services screening criteria for program participation

Member information		
Member name	Member ID#	
Date of birth	Evaluation date	
Referring party information		
Provider name	Organization nam	e
Address		
City	State	ZIP code
Phone number	Email	

For a plan member to be considered for participation in the Home-Based Palliative Care Program, the plan member must meet the following palliative care eligibility screening requirements.

Section 1:	Eligibility criteria for all members
1.a. General eligibility criteria The member must	Is likely to, or has started to, use the hospital or emergency department as a means to manage the member's advanced disease; this refers to unanticipated decompensation and does not include elective procedures.
meet all of the general eligibility	Has an advanced illness, as defined in Section 1.b below, with appropriate documentation of continued decline in health status, and is not eligible for or declines hospice enrollment.
criteria.	Death within a year would not be unexpected based on clinical status.
(If the member is younger than 21 years old, also see Section 2 for	Has received appropriate patient-desired medical therapy OR is a member for whom patient-desired medical therapy is no longer effective. The member is NOT in reversible acute decompensation.
broader pediatric	The member and, if applicable, the family/member-designated support person, agrees to:
eligibility criteria.)	 Attempt, as medically/clinically appropriate, in-home, residential-based, or outpatient disease management/palliative care instead of first going to the emergency department; and
	 Participate in Advance Care Planning discussions.
1.b. Disease-	Congestive heart failure (CHF): Must meet (a) AND (b)
specific eligibility criteria The member must meet at least one of the four disease-specific	a. The member is hospitalized due to CHF as the primary diagnosis with no further invasive interventions planned OR meets criteria for the New York Heart Association's (NYHA) heart failure classification III or higher.
	b. The member has an ejection fraction of less than 30% for systolic failure OR significant co-morbidities.
eligibility criteria.	Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD): Must meet (a) OR (b)
(If the member is younger than 21 years old, also see Section 2 for	a. The member has a forced expiratory volume (FEV) of 1 less than 35% of predicted AND a 24-hour oxygen requirement of less than 3 liters per minute.
	b. The member has a 24-hour oxygen requirement of greater than or equal to 3 liters per minute.
broader pediatric eligibility criteria.)	Advanced cancer: Must meet (a) AND (b)
Grannin	a. The member has a stage III or IV solid organ cancer, lymphoma, or leukemia.
	b. The member has a Karnofsky Performance Scale score less than or equal to 70% OR has failure of two lines of standard of care therapy (chemotherapy or radiation therapy).

Palliative Care Patient Eligibility Screening Tool

1.b. Disease- specific eligibility criteria (cont'd)	Liver disease: Must meet (a) AND (b) combined or (c) alone					
	 a. The member has evidence of irreversible liver damage, serum albumin less than 3.0, an international normalized ratio (INR) greater than 1.3. 					
	 b. The member has ascites, subacute bacterial peritonitis, hepatic encephalopathy, hepatorenal syndrome, or recurrent esophageal varices. c. The member has evidence of irreversible liver damage and has a Model for End-Stage Liver Disease (MELD) score of greater than 19. 					
	 a. Inability to take oral nutrition, change in mental status, history of aspiration or aspiration pneumonia. 					
	Chronic kidney disease (CKD) or end-stage renal disease (ESRD).					
	Severe dementia or Alzhelmer's disease.					
	Other (fill in):					
If the member doe	s not meet the above eligibility requirements and is younger than 21 years old, proceed to Section 2					
Section 2:	Pediatric palliative care eligibility criteria					
2.a. General	The member is under the age of 21.					
eligibility criteria	The family and/or legal guardian agrees to the provision of pediatric palliative care services.					
The member must meet all the general eligibility criteria.						
2.b. Disease- specific eligibility	Conditions for which curative treatment is possible, but may fail (e.g., advanced or progressive cancer or complex and severe congenital or acquired heart disease).					
criteria: The member	Conditions requiring intensive long-term treatment aimed at maintaining quality of life (e.g., human immunodeficiency virus infection, cystic fibrosis, or muscular dystrophy).					
must meet at least one of the four	Progressive conditions for which treatment is exclusively palliative after diagnosis (e.g., progressive metabolic disorders or severe forms of osteogenesis imperfecta).					
life-threatening diagnosis criteria.	Conditions involving severe, non-progressive disability, or causing extreme vulnerability to health complications (e.g., extreme prematurity, severe neurologic sequelae of infectious disease or trauma, severe cerebral palsy with recurrent infection or difficult-to-					
	control symptoms).					
Servicing provider	control symptoms). Home-Based Palllative Care Program status					
provider Indicate member						
provider	Home-Based Palliative Care Program status					
ndicate member	Home-Based Palllative Care Program status Member is enrolled in the program. (Enter enrollment date):					
ndicate member	Home-Based Palllative Care Program status Member is enrolled in the program. (Enter enrollment date): Member did not agree to enroll in the program.					

I am referring the member to Blue Shield of California for a full Palliative Care Service Evaluation.



Palliative Care Services Recertification Tool

Member Information		
Member Name:	Member ID #:	
Date of Birth:	Date of Enrollment:	
Provider :	Current Recertification Date:	
Provider Signature:	Next Recertification Date:	

Guidelines

The Recertification form must be completed by MD, NP, or PA involved in the member's care. The member's recertification for BSC's Palliative Care Program is required every six months upon admission to the program. The form should be submitted up to 15 days before the end of the six-month enrollment period or no later than 2 business days after the start of the next enrollment period. The form shall be sent to bscpalliativecare@blueshieldca.com for review.

Failure to comply with this requirement may result in corrective action, up to and including contract termination.

Please complete all sections below

Section 1:	Eligibility Criteria for All Members
 General Eligibility Criteria The member must meet all the general eligibility criteria. 	Is likely to, or has started to, use the hospital or emergency department to manage the member's advanced disease; this refers to unanticipated decompensation and does not include elective procedures.
	Has an advanced illness, as defined in Section 1.b below, with appropriate documentation of continued decline in health status, and is not eligible for or declines hospice enrollment.
	Death within a year would not be unexpected based on clinical status.
	Has received appropriate patient-desired medical therapy or is a member for whom patient- desired medical therapy is no longer effective. The member is NOT in reversible acute decomposition.
	The member and, if applicable, the family/member-designated support person, agrees to:
	 Attempt, as medically/clinically appropriate, in-home, residential-based, or outpatient disease management/palliative care instead of first going to the emergency department and
	o Participate in Advance Care Planning discussions.
1.b. Disease-Specific Eligibility	Congestive heart failure (CHF): Must meet (a) <u>AND</u> (b)
Criteria: The member must meet at least one of the four disease-specific eligibility criteria.	a. Meets criteria for the New York Heart Association's (NYHA) heart failure classification III or higher.
	b. The member has an ejection fraction of less than 30 percent for systolic failure <u>OR</u> significant co-morbidities.
	Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD): Must meet (a) OR (b)
	a. The member has a forced expiratory volume (FEV) of 1 less than 35 percent of predicted <u>AND</u> a 24-hour oxygen requirement of less than three liters per minute.
	b. The member has a 24-hour oxygen requirement of greater than or equal to three (3) liters per minute.

Palliative Care Services Recertification Form

	Advanced cancer: Must meet (a) <u>AND</u> (b) a. The member has a stage III or IV solid organ cancer. lymphoma, or leukemia.
	 b. The member has a Karnofsky Performance Scale score less than or equal to 70 percent OR has failure of two lines of standard of care therapy (chemotherapy or radiation therapy).
	Liver disease: Must meet (a) AND (b) combined or (c) alone
	 The member has evidence of irreversible liver damage, serum albumin less than 3.0, ar international normalized ratio (INR) greater than 1.3.
	b. The member has ascites, subacute bacterial peritonitis, hepatic encephalopathy, hepatorenal syndrome, or recurrent esophageal varices.
	c. The member has evidence of irreversible liver damage and has a Model for End-Stage Liver Disease (MELD) score of greater than 19.
	Cerebral Vascular Accident/stroke:
	 a. Inability to take oral nutrition, change in mental status, history of aspiration or aspiration pneumonia.
	Chronic Kidney Disease (CKD) or End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD).
	Severe Dementia or Alzheimer's Disease.
	Other (Fill in):
2. Please provide a brief	Please provide information that describes findings that support continued
narrative	enrollment into the program; please include the following in the narrative, update on medical, psychosocial, spiritual needs; the member's acuity;
	frequency of visits and how the member is still benefiting from the program.

Please provide a brief narrative that describes findings that support continued enrollment into the program.

Section 2	Brief Narrative	